
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN 
that the Regular Meeting of the Aviation Advisory Commission 

      will be held on: 

Thursday             June 8, 2023           12:00 P.M. 

DEPARTMENT OF AIRPORTS 
ADMINISTRATION OFFICE 

CONFERENCE ROOM 
555 AIRPORT WAY, SUITE B 

  CAMARILLO, CA 

Public Participation Options and Instructions:  

1. Attend in-person at the address listed above.

2. You may observe the meeting via the Department of Airports YouTube channel
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC4jLWASMGn4wTrEPdT8BOTQ?view_as=subscriber

3. Participate and provide public comment via Zoom:

WEBINAR:
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83296331562?pwd=a2lWbVNRMTJ4UEtCeURVd0xKek1oQT09
TELEPHONE: 1-669-444-9171
MEETING ID: 832 9633 1562
MEETING PASSCODE: 184806

Clink on the link above and enter your name so we may call on you when it is your turn to
speak. Members of the public who wish to comment should use the “Raise Hand” function
in Zoom when the Chair of the Commission calls for public comment. The secretary will call
your name when it is your turn to speak. You will be prompted to unmute your microphone.
Unmute and begin speaking; start by stating your name.

If joining by telephone, press star (*) then 9 on their touch-tone phone when the Chair of the
Commission calls for public comment. The secretary will call the last 4 digits of your phone
number when it is your turn to speak. You will be prompted to unmute your phone. Unmute
and begin speaking; start by stating your name.

Public members will have 3 minutes to speak on an agenda item. Please ensure that all
background noise is muted (TV, radio, etc.).

1



4. E-mail or Mail Public Comment in Advance of the Meeting:

Public comments may be submitted in writing by e-mail or mail. Comments must be received
by 12:00 p.m. on the day prior to the meeting. All written comments received prior to the
meeting will be circulated to the Commision members. Please note that all comments in
writing are public record and subject to disclosure. Comments will not be read aloud at the
meeting, but will be made public upon the approval of the meeting minutes. Please do not
submit personal contact information you do not want to be made public.

Submission comments by e-mail can be sent to airportinfo@ventura.org. In the subject line
please indicate “AAC Meeting Comment” then proceed with your comment in the body of
the e-mail.

Submission comments by mail can be mailed to 555 Airport Way, Ste. B, Camarillo, CA
93010, Attention: “AAC Meeting Comment”.

2

https://protect.checkpoint.com/v2/___mailto:airportinfo@ventura.org___.YzJ1OmNvdmF2YW5hbjpjOm86MThjODE3NTQ2MDk3ZGVjOTI5NDBiNjY0ZTZmY2JiZDY6Njo4ZDRiOjBkMmFhYThkYTZiZGZmNTk2ZGY2Y2Q0OTBmMmFiNTE1YjlmMDA0ZDBiNWMxZWNkMWE1ZmM4NzAxNDJjNGY3Yzk6cDpU


AGENDA 

1. CALL to ORDER and PLEDGE of ALLEGIANCE

2. ROLL CALL

3. AGENDA REVIEW

4. APPROVAL of MINUTES – May 11, 2023 (Page 6)

5. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

Airport related comments will be limited to a maximum of three minutes per item. The 
public comment period is reserved for issues NOT on the agenda.  

In-Person Public Comment: 
Speakers must fill out a speaker card and submit it to the secretary before the end of the public 
comment period.  

Speaker cards for issues listed on the agenda must be presented before the item is up for 
consideration. Speakers will be called when the item is presented.  

Zoom Public Comment: 
Speakers should press the raise hand button, or if joining by telephone, press star (*) then 9 to 
be added to the speaker queue when the Chair of the Commission calls for public comment. 

E-mail or Mail Public Comment:
Public comments may be submitted in writing by e-mail or mail. Comments must be received 
by 12:00 p.m. on the day prior to the meeting. All written comments received prior to the 
meeting will be circulated to the Commision members. Please note that all comments in 
writing are public record and subject to disclosure. Comments will not be read aloud at the 
meeting, but will be made public upon the approval of the meeting minutes. Please do not 
submit personal contact information you do not want to be made public.  

6. NO NEW BUSINESS

7. OLD BUSINESS

A. Subject: Review of Fiscal Year 2023-24 Proposed Budget (Page 14)

Recommendation: 

Staff requests that your Commission and Authorities review and comment on the Department of 
Airports (DOA) proposed FY 2023-24 budget for Camarillo and Oxnard Airports; and Camarillo 
Roads and Lighting Enterprise Fund, as attached, and recommend approval of the Board of 
Supervisors. 

8. COMMISSION COMMENTS – Comments by Commission members on matters 
deemed appropriate.

3

124914
Pencil



9. ADJOURNMENT

The next regular Commission meeting will be on Thursday, July 13, 2023 in the Department of 
Airports Administration Office Conference Room, 555 Airport Way, Suite B, Camarillo, California. 

IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT, IF YOU NEED SPECIAL 
ASSISTANCE TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING, PLEASE CONTACT DENISE ARREOLA 
(805) 388-4372. NOTIFICATION 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING WILL ENABLE THE
DEPARTMENT OF AIRPORTS TO MAKE REASONABLE ARRANGEMENTS TO ENSURE
ACCESSIBILITY TO THIS MEETING.

4



Webinar Instructions 
Public link to Zoom webinar: 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83296331562?pwd=a2lWbVNRMTJ4UEtCeURVd0xKek1oQT09 

Webinar ID:   832 9633 1562 
Passcode:  184806
Phone Numbers: 1-669-900-6833 

1-253-215-8782

Cell Phone or Computer with Audio (Microphone) Feature:  Click on the link above and enter 
passcode.  Enter your name so we may call on you when it is your turn to speak.   

The Chairperson will ask if anyone wishes to speak to the item.  At that time, raise your hand by 
clicking the Raise Hand button.  Follow the instructions below regarding Speaking. 

Computer without Audio (Microphone) Feature:  Click on the link above and enter passcode.  This 
will allow you to view and listen to the meeting.  In order to speak, follow the instructions below for 
Telephone.  

Telephone:  You may observe the meeting via the Department of Airports YouTube channel. If you 
are interested in speaking to an item, you can call into one of the phone lines listed above, and when 
prompted enter the Webinar ID and Passcode shown above.  Once in the meeting, you will be listening 
to the meeting through your phone handset.   

The Chairperson will ask if anyone wishes to speak to the item.  At that time, raise your hand by dialing 
*9.  Follow the instructions below regarding Speaking.

Speaking 
When it is your turn to speak, the Chairperson will call your name or the last 4 digits of your phone 
number if you are calling from a phone, and you will have 3 minutes to speak.  Please ensure that all 
background noise is muted (TV, radio, etc.).  You will be prompted to unmute your microphone/phone.  
Unmute and begin speaking; start by stating your name. 

The timer on the screen will count down your 3 minutes.  The timer starts green indicating you have 
3 minutes; when the time hits 1 minute remaining, the timer will change to yellow; when the 3 minutes 
have elapsed, the timer will turn red.  At that time, your microphone will be muted and we will move 
onto the next speaker.  If you called in on one of the phone lines listed above, you will not be able to 
see the timer.  Instead, you will be prompted when the 3 minutes has begun; when the time hits 1 
minute remaining; when the 3 minutes have elapsed. 

5

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88331417127?pwd=Z3RrTFdYRFlPZFdrWEQxZVA4SzFIdz09


AVIATION ADVISORY COMMISSION 

MINUTES 

May 11, 2023 

1. CALL to ORDER and PLEDGE of ALLEGIANCE

Chair, Maggie Bird, called the meeting to order at 12:02 p.m. and Commissioner Steve 
Tannehill led the pledge of allegiance.   

2. ROLL CALL

  PRESENT 

Maggie Bird 
Shane Warburton  
Adriana Van der Graaf 
Jerrold Abramson 
John Corneau 
Steve Tannehill 

Excused (E) 
Late (L) 

AIRPORT STAFF 
Keith Freitas, Director 
Dave Nafie, Deputy Director   
Erin Powers, Projects Administrator   
Madeline Herrle, Lease Manager 
Jamal Ghazaleh, Fiscal Manager 
Jannette Jauregui, Communications & 
Engagement Manager 

 ABSENT 

Matthew Johnston (E) 
Buzz Patterson (E) 
James Flickinger 
Steve Weiss 

6



3. AGENDA REVIEW

No changes to the agenda. 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – March 9, 2023

Action:   Steve Tannehill moved to approve the March 9, 2023, minutes and Jerrold 
Abramson seconded the motion. Adriana Van der Graaf and John Corneau 
abstained. The motion passed 4-0 with two abstentions.   

5. PUBLIC COMMENT - Citizens wishing to speak to the Commission on an airport
related item must fill out a speaker card and submit it to the secretary. Comments
will be limited to a maximum of three minutes per item.

Speaker cards for issues NOT on the agenda must be submitted before the end of
the public comment period.

Speaker cards for issues listed on the agenda must be presented before the item is
up for consideration. Speakers will be called when the item is presented.

No public comments. 

6. NEW BUSINESS

A. Subject: Selection of Vice-Chair for Remainder of Calendar Year 2023 Term.

Recommendation: 

Nominate and select a Vice-Chair to serve the remainder of the Calendar Year 2023 
term. 

Action:   Chair Maggie Bird moved to nominate Adriana Van der Graaf as Vice-
Chair for the remainder of the calendar year 2023 term. Jerrold Abramson 
seconded the motion. No other nominations named. After discussion, all members 
voted, and the motion passed 4-1 with one abstention from John Corneau. Steve 
Tannehill voted no.   

B. Subject:   Receive and File a Staff Update Regarding the Camarillo Airport
Layout Plan Update. (ALP Update) 

Recommendation: 

Staff requests that your Commission/Authority receive and file a staff presentation on the 
progress of the ALP Update for Camarillo Airport.  

7



Action:   Steve Tannehill moved to receive and file the staff presentation. Shane 
Warburton seconded the motion. All members voted and the motion passed 
unanimously 6-0. 

C. Subject:  Receive and File a staff Update Regarding the Camarillo and Oxnard
FAR Part 150 Noise Compatibility Studies. 

Recommendation: 

Staff requests that your Commission/Authority receive and file a staff presentation on the 
progress of the FAR Part 150 Noise Compatibility Studies for Camarillo and Oxnard 
Airports.  

Action:     Shane Warburton moved to receive and file the staff presentation. 
Jerrold Abramson seconded the motion. All members voted and the motion 
passed unanimously 6-0. 

D. Subject:  Authorization for the Director of Airports or Designee to Terminate the
Month-to-Month Lease with the State of California, Department of 
Food and Agriculture at 295 Durley Ave., Camarillo, CA. 

Recommendation: 

Authorize the Director of Airports or his designee to terminate the month-to-month lease 
with the State of California, Department of Food and Agriculture at 295 Durley Avenue, 
Camarillo. 

Action: Jerrold Abramson moved approve staff’s recommendation. Shane 
Warburton seconded the motion. All members voted and motion passed 5-0 with 
one abstention from John Corneau.    

E. Subject:  Review of Fiscal Year 2023-24 Proposed Budget.

Recommendation: 

Staff requests that your Commission and Authorities review and comment on the 
Department of Airports (DOA) proposed FY 2023-24 budget for Camarillo and Oxnard 
Airports; and Camarillo Roads and Lighting Enterprise Fund, as attached, and 
recommend approval of the Board of Supervisors. 

Action: After discussion, Steve Tannehill moved to defer action on this item and 
table for June 8, 2023 AAC meeting. John Corneau seconded the motion. All 
members voted, and the motion to defer passed unanimously 6-0. 

8



F. Subject:  Approval of the Department of Airports’ Fiscal Year 2023-24 Rent and 
Fee Schedule, Effective July 1, 2023; Adoption of a Resolution 
Establishing Rents, Fees, and Insurance Requirements for the 
Department of Airports; Delegation of Authority to the County 
Executive Officer and the Director of Airports to Execute Leases, 
Subleases, Licenses, Permits, Special Use/Activity Permits, Operation 
Agreements, Extensions, Amendments, Consents, Termination 
Notices, and Unlawful Detainer Complaints in Accordance with the 
Provisions of the Schedule.  

 
Recommendations: 
 
Staff requests that your Commission/Authorities recommend that the Board of 
Supervisors (Board):  
 
1. Approve the Department of Airports’ (“Department”) FY 2023-24 Rent and Fee 

Schedule (Exhibit 1 is a clean version and Exhibit 2 is a legislative version with track 
changes), with an effective date of July 1, 2023; and  

 
2. Authorize the County Executive Officer and the Director of Airports to execute 

certain leases, subleases, licenses, permits, special use/activity permits, operation 
agreements, extensions, amendments, consents, termination notices, and unlawful 
detainer complaints as described in section III of the attached resolution (pages 31-
38 of Exhibit 1); and  

 
3. Approve, adopt, and execute the resolution (pages 31-38 of Exhibit 1) establishing 

rents, fees, and insurance requirements for the Department. 
 

Action:  Steve Tannehill moved to approve staff’s recommendation. Jerrold 
Abramson seconded the motion. All members voted and the motion passed 
unanimously 6-0. 
 
G. Subject: Approval of the Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for   

Camarillo and Oxnard Airports; Authorization for the Director of 
Airports or Designee, to Apply for Grants to Fund Projects 
Scheduled for Federal Fiscal Years 2023 and 2024 Outlined in the 
CIP upon Notification from the Federal Aviation Administration and 
the California Department of Transportation Aeronautics Program 
That Funds Are Available. 

 
Recommendations: 
 

1. Approve the five-year capital improvement plan (CIP) for Camarillo and Oxnard 
Airports (Exhibit 1); and 

9



2. Authorize the Director of Airports or his designee, to apply for grants to fund the
projects scheduled for federal fiscal years (FFY) 2023 and 2024 outlined in the CIP
upon notification from the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and the California
Department of Transportation Aeronautics Program (Caltrans) that funds are
available.

Action: Vice-Chair Adriana Van der Graaf moved to approve staff’s 
recommendation. Shane Warburton seconded the motion. All members voted and 
the motion passed unanimously 6-0. 

H. Subject: Approval of, and Authorization for the Director of Airports or His
Designee to Sign, Amendment No. 1 to the Consulting Services 
Contract for the Camarillo Airport Part 150 Noise Compatibility Study 
with Coffman Associates, Inc., Increasing the Total Amount of the 
Contract by $35,000 to $805,943, and Increasing the Airport’s Cost 
Share of the Contract from $42,402 to $77,402. 

Recommendation: 

Staff requests that your Board: Approve and authorize the Director of Airports or his 
designee to sign, Amendment No. 1 to the Consulting Services Contract with Coffman 
Associates, Inc., for the Camarillo Airport Part 150 Noise Compatibility Study, increasing 
the total amount of the contract by $35,000 to $805,943, and Increasing the Airport’s 
Cost Share of the Contract from $42,402 to $77,402 (Exhibit 1). 

Action:  Steve Tannehill moved to approve staff’s recommendation. Jerrold 
Abramson seconded the motion. All members voted and the motion passed 
unanimously 6-0. 

I. Subject:   Approval of, and Authorization for the Director of Airports or His
Designee to Sign, Amendment No. 1 to the Consulting Services Contract for the
Oxnard Airport Part 150 Noise Compatibility Study with Coffman Associates, Inc.,
Increasing the Total Amount of the Contract by $35,000 to $805,943, and
Increasing the Airport’s Cost Share of the Contract from $42,402 to $77,402.

Recommendation: 

Staff requests that your Board: Approve and authorize the Director of Airports or his 
designee to sign, Amendment No. 1 to the Consulting Services Contract with Coffman 
Associates, Inc., for the Oxnard Airport Part 150 Noise Compatibility Study, increasing 
the total amount of the contract by $35,000 to $805,943, and Increasing the Airport’s 
Cost Share of the Contract from $42,402 to $77,402 (Exhibit 1). 

10



Action:  Steve Tannehill moved to approve staff’s recommendation. Jerrold 
Abramson seconded the motion. All members voted and the motion passed 
unanimously 6-0. 

7. DIRECTOR’S REPORT

• After over 18-months out of service, the self-serve fuel island is back in service at
Avex Aviation.

• Appreciation and special thanks to Barb Filkins, who was gracious enough to do
9 touch-and-go flight tracks after concerns raised in flight tracking system of new
VNOM’s. All 9 on target and verified by Keith Freitas and Janette Jauregui.

• Special acknowledgement to Eric Nelson for working with Barb Filkins to develop
a new Fly Friendly VC Flight video. The video will provide pilot perspective when
flying our recommended touch and go flight tracks and will also be viewable on
the Airport website. More information to follow.

• Cloud-9 Hangar is in its final stages of completion and will have their first
operational tenant June 2023.

• Golden West Aviation recognized for officially selling unleaded aviation fuel at the
Oxnard Airport.

• Special thanks to the Department of Airports maintenance team for completing 3
safety upgrades to the fuel farm at Camarillo Airport, that include new fencing, K-
rails, and lighting.

• The progression of private hangar inspections continues with 189 inspections
completed and transitioned from a month-to-month to 20-year leases.
Approximately 35 private hangar inspections remain.

• Complaints as to noise and stockpiling of soil at the project to reconstruct taxiway
connectors A-E from Oxnard residents were addressed. Residents were provided
helpful information and airport staff continues to work with contractors to reduce
the noise and keep majority of operation at night. State Water Board has advised
soil must be tested before being hauled off.

Director’s Report was received and filed. 

8. REPORTS

11



Report items listed below are presented to the Aviation Advisory Commission for 
information only, at this time. The report items require no action or are not ready 
for the Commission’s consideration. The Commission may refer these items to the 
Department of Airports for investigation and report back on a future agenda.   

Monthly Activity Report – February, March 2023 
Monthly Noise Complaints – February, March 2023 
Consultant Reports (Coffman Associates) – February, March 2023  
Consultant Reports (Jviation – Camarillo Airport) – February, March 2023 
Consultant Reports (Jviation – Oxnard Airport) – February, March 2023 
Consultant Reports (Mead & Hunt) – February, March 2023  
Airport Tenant Project Status – April 2023 
Project Status – April 2023 

9. CORRESPONDENCE

Correspondence items listed below are presented to the Aviation Advisory 
Commission for information only, at this time. The correspondence items require 
no action or are not ready for the Commission’s consideration. The Commission 
may refer these items to the Department of Airports for investigation and report 
back on a future agenda.  

Article dated March 23, 2023 from VC Star re: Oxnard residents voice airport noise 
complaints. 

Letter dated March 24, 2023 to Granite Construction providing Notice to Proceed on 
Oxnard Taxiway connectors A-E. 

Event summary from Oxnard Chapter of EAA promoting a Young Eagles Rally at 
Oxnard Airport on March 25, 2023. 

Press Release dated March 29, 2023 from AVEX re: AVEX hosts Aircraft Safety 
Seminar at CMA – March 29, 2023. Department of Airports. 

Advertisement for the ALP Update Public Information Workshop held on April 18 at the 
Camarillo Public Library. 

Press Release from Department of Airports re: OXR Taxiway Construction, addressing 
concerns. 
Article from Camarillo Acorn re: Officials ground airport disinformation. 

Correspondence was received and filed. 

10. COMMISSION COMMENTS

Steve Tannehill further recognizes Barb Filkins for taking her plane, flying the patterns, 
working with the AAC, and for her continuous great service to the community.  

12



11. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, a motion to adjourn the May 11, 2023, meeting of the 
Aviation Advisory Commission was made by Jerrold Abramson and seconded by Steve 
Tannehill at 1:21 p.m.  

The next regular Commission meeting will be on Thursday, June 8, 2023 in the 
Department of Airports Administration Office Conference Room, 555 Airport Way, Suite 
B, Camarillo, California. 

KEITH FREITAS, A.A.E., C.A.E. 
Administrative Secretary 

13



May 11, 2023 

Aviation Advisory Commission  
Camarillo Airport Authority 
Oxnard Airport Authority 
555 Airport Way, Suite B  
Camarillo, CA 93010 

Subject: Review of Fiscal Year 2023-24 Proposed Budget 

Recommendation: 

Staff requests that your Commission and Authorities review and comment on the 
Department of Airports (DOA) proposed FY 2023-24 budget for Camarillo and Oxnard 
Airports; and Camarillo Roads and Lighting Enterprise Fund, as attached, and 
recommend approval of the Board of Supervisors. 

Discussion: 

From a budget perspective looking forward, DOA has prepared a budget with a 
conservative approach that anticipates impacts to revenues received from tenant leases 
and other fee related sources.  

In summary, the FY 2023-24 proposed budget funds airport operations, on-going and 
previously planned and funded capital improvements, and projects a reasonable cash 
balance. The budget provides the funds necessary to maintain and improve the airports 
within the guidelines and policies followed by the DOA. The Airport Enterprise Fund 
(AEF) expects to maintain a reserve balance equal to at least 12 months of operating 
expenses throughout the year. As such, the Department is examining increased capital 
investment in key areas of both airports to ensure budget units are well maintained and 
avoid unexpected costs as infrastructure ages. 

This budget represents a continued effort by staff to analyze the operating budget 
through a hybrid “line item” and “zero-based” approach and to integrate the capital 
budget needs of both airports in a manner sustainable through the currently approved 
rent and fee schedule. 

 The revenue section shows an increase in property and investment revenue. The
property revenue increases are primarily due to new leases in the business park
at Camarillo Airport, leases in the airside of the airports, and rate adjustments to

14



AAC/CAA/OAA 
FY 2023-24 Proposed Budget 
May 11, 2023 
Page 2 
  

various leaseholds. Other revenue sources such as percentage rent and 
miscellaneous fees continue to perform to the current year’s level. 
 

 Camarillo Airport is projected to realize a gain during the fiscal year. 
 

 While Oxnard Airport currently projects an operating loss (excluding depreciation), 
the Department is actively seeking development and redevelopment proposals for 
two airside parcels.   
 

 The Enterprise Fund E300 is projected to realize a gain during the fiscal year. 
 
 The DOA anticipates being staffed at 38 FTE’s. 

 
The budget book is divided into sections for purposes of review, as follows: 
 
TAB #1:  “Camarillo/Oxnard Combined”: 

1. A cash flow analysis for the five-year period July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2028, supports 
the FY 2023-24 budget as sustainable with an estimated $19,000,000 cash balance 
that would begin with the new fiscal year. The highlights are as follows: 

 
a. Depreciation is excluded in the cash flow calculation since it is not a true cash 

expense. 
 

b. Reserve levels beginning FY 2023-24 are $19 million and $18 million 
beginning FY 2024-25, which are sustainable. These levels are expected to 
decrease as the DOA completes capital projects in the coming years. 
However, this excludes new revenue from new development leases. A large 
part of the Department’s projects are grant based, and therefore, much of the 
grant-related expenditures will be reimbursed, if within FAA guidelines.  
However, reserve levels remain adequate to provide a sufficient cash base for 
planned operations and other capital projects. The target/projected reserve 
level can be adjusted by adding or subtracting projects in the Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP). 

 
2. The FY 2023-24 Preliminary Budget depicts the proposed budget’s impact on 

operating expenditures compared to the current year’s Adopted Budget. 
 
3. The “Operating Gain” without depreciation for operating the DOA is $219,561. 
 
4. Line-item budgets depict all non-capital expenses and revenues. The “Total 

Expenditures” reflects an amount like the previous adopted budget, however it 
reflects projected performance-based salary increases, safety retirement for Airport 
Operations Officers, and other labor expense associated costs. 

 

15



AAC/CAA/OAA 
FY 2023-24 Proposed Budget 
May 11, 2023 
Page 3 
  

5. The Department of Airports is an Enterprise Fund. As such, all operating costs are 
derived from airport operations. No funding is received from County funds, taxes, 
or outside loans. 

 
TAB #2:  “Camarillo”: 

 
1. Camarillo’s “Operating Gain” without depreciation is positive at $1,010,186. Please 

note that Camarillo Airport administrative salaries and benefits are allocated 90% 
to Camarillo administration and 10% to Oxnard administration to present a more 
realistic picture of the costs for each airport. 

 
2. Services and supplies budget, reflects an decrease of 0.9%, this is primarily due to 

an effort to continue to maintain airport costs concurrent with prior year estimates.  
  
3. Camarillo administration, operations, and maintenance sub-budgets are also found 

in this section for a more detailed listing of expenditures and revenue.  
 
TAB #3:  “Oxnard”:  
 
1. Oxnard’s “Operating Loss” without depreciation is $790,625. A decrease to 10% of 

salaries and benefits from DOA administration are allocated to Oxnard Airport to 
give a truer picture of costs.   

 
2. Salaries and benefits decreased by $189,569, primarily due to the percent transfer 

decrease from CMA Administration personnel costs. 
 

3. Services and supplies budget increased $378,503 mainly due to extensive security 
fencing replacement maintenance at the airport, PFAS cost recovery remediation, 
and hangar structural repairs. 

 
4. Oxnard administration, operations, and maintenance sub-budgets are also found in 

this section for a more detailed listing of expenditures and revenue.  
 
TAB #4:  “Capital”: 
 
This budget is for capital expenses and revenue associated with federal and state grants 
and non-grant projects. The “Net Cost” of proposed projects is $1,971,415. The projects 
are listed for your review on two tables and are consistent with the DOA’s five-year 
Capital Improvement Plan. The Department of Airports is an Enterprise Fund. As such, 
all operating costs are derived from airport operations. No funding is received from 
County funds, constituent taxes or fees, or outside loans. 
Highlights of the capital budget are: 
 
1. For Camarillo the grant eligible project scheduled for Camarillo Airport includes a 

final design for the 2026 runway and taxiway reconstruction. Non-grant eligible 
projects are unplanned for FY 2023-24. Project costs are estimated to be 

16



AAC/CAA/OAA 
FY 2023-24 Proposed Budget 
May 11, 2023 
Page 4 
  

$4,067,151. Anticipated grant revenue to cover those costs is $3,810,436. 
Financing is available within the Airports enterprise fund to cover net cost. 

  
2. For Oxnard, The grant eligible projects anticipated for Oxnard airport include the 

reconstruction of Taxiway F and the Air Traffic Control Tower facility assessment. 
Project costs are estimated to be $15,150,000. Anticipated grant revenue to cover 
those costs is $13,785,000. Financing is available within the Airports enterprise 
fund to cover net cost. 

 
TAB #5:  “Camarillo Roads and Lighting”:  
 
Otherwise known as the Camarillo Utility Enterprise (CUE), this budget is for the 
maintenance of streets, street lighting and storm drains at the Camarillo Airport. The 
budget is funded through assessments to the eight owners of developed property on the 
airport campus, of which the DOA represents a share of approximately 66%. The CUE 
project schedule has no new projects scheduled for this fiscal year. 
 
Staff realizes that there is a tremendous amount of information in the budget, and we 
have tried to organize it in a way that makes it accessible for discussion. Please feel free 
to contact Jamal Ghazaleh at 388-4207 or me at 388-4200 should you have any 
questions. 
 
 
 
 
 
KEITH FREITAS, A.A.E., C.A.E.  
Director of Airports  
 
Exhibit 1 – Proposed FY 2023-24 Budget 

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74


	June 8, 2023 AAC Agenda
	Recommendation:

	Minutes May 11, 2023 (DA)
	Recommendation:
	C. Subject:  Receive and File a staff Update Regarding the Camarillo and Oxnard FAR Part 150 Noise Compatibility Studies.
	Recommendation:
	D. Subject:  Authorization for the Director of Airports or Designee to Terminate the Month-to-Month Lease with the State of California, Department of Food and Agriculture at 295 Durley Ave., Camarillo, CA.
	Recommendation:
	Recommendation:
	Recommendations:
	Recommendation:
	Recommendation:

	6E. AAC-CAA-OAA 23-24 Budget Board Letter
	6E. Exhibit 1 - FY 2023-24 Airports Operating and Capital Projects_CUE Budget Request



